
City of Palmer, Alaska 
Regular City Council Meeting 

August 22, 2017, at 7 PM 
City Council Chambers 

231 W. Evergreen Avenue, Palmer 
www.cityofpalmer.org 

Agenda 

Mayor Edna B. DeVries 
Deputy Mayor Linda Combs 
Council Member Richard Best 
Council Member Steve Carrington 
Council Member David Fuller 
Council Member Brad Hanson 
Council Member Pete LaFrance 

City Attorney Michael Gatti 
City Clerk Norma I. Alley, MMC 
City Manager Nathan Wallace 

A. Call to Order

B. Roll Call

C. Pledge of Allegiance

D. Approval of Agenda
1. Approval of Consent Agenda

a. Resolution No. 17-026: Confirming the Appointment of Election Officials for the City of
Palmer Regular Election on Tuesday, October 3, 2017 ....................... Page  3 

b. Action Memorandum No. 17-058: Authorizing the City Manager to Negotiate and Enter
Into a Contract with Bering Marine Corporation for the Purchase and Delivery of 120 Tons of
Road Salt in the Amount of $18,966.00 ............................................ Page  7 

2. Approval of Minutes of Previous Meetings
a. August 8, 2017, Regular Meeting  .................................................... Page 11 

E. Communication and Appearance Requests
1. Presentation of a Proclamation Recognizing Sandra Garley’s Retirement ... Page 15

F. Reports
1. City Manager’s Report .......................................................................... Page 17 
2. City Clerk’s Report ............................................................................... Page 21 
3. Mayor’s Report .................................................................................... Page 37 
4. City Attorney’s Report

G. Audience Participation

H. Action Memoranda
1. Action Memorandum No. 17-059: Authorizing the City Manager to Negotiate and Execute a

Contract with Bore Tide Construction, in an Amount Not to Exceed $133,693.33 to Perform
Removal of Old Electrical Heating, Installation of New Mechanical Hydronic Heating Equipment
and Required Flight Service Station Finishing Upgrades per City of Palmer Lease Agreement with
the Federal Aviation Administration ....................................................... Page 39 

I. New Business

J. Record of Items Placed on the Table

K. Audience Participation

Page 1 of 41

http://www.cityofpalmer.org/


L. Council Member Comments

M. Executive Session
1. Subjects That Tend to Prejudice the Reputation and Character of Any Person – City Manager

Evaluation (Note: Personnel action may be taken following the executive session)

N. Adjournment

Tentative 2017 Palmer City Council Meetings 

Meeting Date Meeting 
Type Time Notes 

Sept 12 Regular 7 pm 

Sept 26 Regular 7 pm 

Oct 9 Special 6 pm Election Certification 

Oct 10 Regular 7 pm 

Oct 17 Special 6 pm 2018 Budget 

Oct 24 Special 6 pm 2018 Budget 

Oct 24 Regular 7 pm 

Page 2 of 41



_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 17-026 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer  
Resolution No. 17-026 

Subject:  Appointing Election Officials for the City of Palmer Regular Election on Tuesday, October 3, 
2017 

Agenda of: August 22, 2017 

Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________
☐ Denied

Originator Information: 

Originator: Norma I. Alley, City Clerk 

Department Review: 

Route to: Department Director: Signature: Date: 

Community Development 

Finance 

Fire 

Police 

Public Works 

Approved for Presentation By: 

Signature: Remarks: 

City Manager 

City Attorney 

City Clerk 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 2,000.00 approximate 

This legislation (√): 
 Creates revenue in the amount of: $  
√ Creates expenditure in the amount of: $ 2,000.00 approximate 

Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
Has no fiscal impact 

Funds are (√): 
√ Budgeted Line item(s): 01-02-10-6099 (Election Expenses) 

Not budgeted 

Director of Finance Signature: 

Page 3 of 41



_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 17-026 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s): 
 Resolution No. 17-026

Summary Statement: 

Palmer Municipal Code 18.22.020 (B) states, “the clerk shall recommend to the council at least three 
election officials for each precinct to constitute the election board for that precinct. The council shall, by 
resolution, appoint the election officials…”.  

Resolution No. 17-026 lists the individuals recommended to serve as election officials for the October 3, 
2017, election. 

Administration’s Recommendation: 

Approve Resolution No. 17-026 Appointing Election Officials for the October 3, 2017, Regular Election. 

Page 4 of 41



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 17-026 Page 1 of 1 

CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA 

Resolution No. 17-026 

A Resolution of the Palmer City Council Appointing Election Officials for the City of 
Palmer Regular Election on Tuesday, October 3, 2017 

WHEREAS, in accordance with section 18.22.020 of the Palmer Municipal Code, the 
following persons have been deemed qualified and have agreed to serve as Election Officials for 
the City of Palmer Regular Election on Tuesday, October 3, 2017: 

Election Officials: 

Precinct 11-070 
Mat-Su Borough Building 

Precinct 11-075 
Palmer Senior Center 

Meredith “Jo” Weller (Chair) Virginia Sweeney (Chair) 

Cynthia Richmond Gena Ornquist 

Sandra “Sandi” Woolsey George Platt 

Alice Williams Shirley Platt 

Barbara Entsminger 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Palmer City Council confirms the 
appointment of these individuals as Election Officials for the October 3, 2017, City of Palmer 
Regular Election. 

Approved by the Palmer City Council this ____ day of ___________, 2017. 

_________________________ 
Edna B. DeVries, Mayor 

_____________________________ 
Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Clerk 

Introduced by: Mayor by Request of 
City Clerk Alley 

Date: August 22, 2017 
Action:  

Vote: 
Yes: No: 

Page 5 of 41



Page 6 of 41



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 17-058 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer  
Action Memorandum No. 17-058 

Subject:  Authorizing the City Manager to Negotiate and Enter into a Contract with Bering Marine 
Corporation for the Purchase and Delivery of 120 Tons of Road Salt in the Amount of $18,966.00   

Agenda of: August 22, 2017 

Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________
☐ Denied

Originator Information: 

Originator: Chris Nall, Director of Public Works 

Department Review: 

Route to: Department Director: Signature: Date: 

Community Development 

√ Finance 08/02/2017 

Fire

Police

√ Public Works 08/02/2017 

Approved for Presentation By: 

Signature: Remarks: 

City Manager 

City Attorney 

City Clerk 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 

This legislation (√): 
 Creates revenue in the amount of: $  
√ Creates expenditure in the amount of: $ 18,966.00 

Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
Has no fiscal impact 

Funds are (√): 
√ Budgeted Line item(s): 01-17-40-6066 

Not budgeted 

Director of Finance Signature: 

Page 7 of 41



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 17-058 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s): 
 State of Alaska Contract 2513H031

Summary Statement: 

This Action Memorandum authorizes the City’s annual purchase of salt that is mixed with sand 
for winter street maintenance and ice control.  

This purchase will utilize the governmental procurement provision of City code (PMC 3.21.230). 
This allows the City, without the use of the competitive bidding procedure, to use another 
governmental bid process through bid extension.  

In this case, the State of Alaska solicited bids for the supply of Type 1 sodium chloride in bulk. 
Bering Marine Corporation was awarded the contract. Under that contract, the City will purchase 
120 tons of road salt at a per ton cost of $158.05 delivered to Palmer, for a total cost of 
$18,966.00. 

Administration’s Recommendation: 

To approve Action Memorandum No. 17-058. 

Page 8 of 41



STATE OF ALASKA COl'I&JI.ACT AWARD l'I"UUBD. 

AGENCY Depiiiiiiiellt ofl'lmspartalion &: Public FoKilities 
Stm'lride Co~&: Piooum1en1 2513H0.31 

CONTR.:\CT (3132 ChalmelOrive. SUite 310) 

A"\\'ARD P.o . Bas 1 m oo 
Junuu.AllW 99811-2500 

O:BDE!INGDEPA1n.IENT: COMMODitY COOl: 0.'\.TE Of CONI1tACT 

D~p:utm~nt of Transportation & 
19246 

F~bruary 19, 2013 
Public F acilities 
Stat~wid~ Contracting & Pr ocurement Nl:rull!ll.ll: Pfl!lOD Of I!NEWAL OPllONS Pl. NO. IDAIE.ASStQIED 

P.O. Bo:x lU500 Four (·0 On~ Year NJA 

J uneau. .-Uask.a 99811-2500 DAIEINI'IIAL C0!-((1;\CT BEGINS D.UE IMIIL.U. CONmACT ENDS 

Februan· 19 !013 Februan· 28. 20U 
·CONJ'RACTOR: Beling Marine Corporation GS VENDOI.CODI!: 

AOOUSS: 6«1 South Airpark Place ISSUED IN AOCOI.DA.'{a WITH BID i: 2513H031 DAtED: Jn. 2, 2013 

.~chorage, Alaska 9950! ma. ADJ. UQ. Pn01 ro L-'\CH: 

CPIIPPI BASI! INDEX POINTS 8t MOIYR: 

CONI' ACT ;)~.WE! Rick Gray JZVIEW DATI!: ~·ALS EXPJJI:E(MOI\11): 

TEU!PHIDIE Ntn.1BEit: 907-24~204 fax: 907-245-1744 ES'IlM.UED V.UUE Of !Nm..U. 'I"Enf: $3,500,000.00 IEBD>: ·01118 
BtAlL: ricUti'•madm..com 
SEND INVOICE IN DUPliCATE T O: 1J OnloriD.l o.-- 0 1. (gJ "'~;, O..aipliml 
NOTE: 'I1m order coustilllii!S a biDding commitment Mtween tbe State and tbe conttllctor listed hereon. Unauthariz.ed modification 

witbout tbe upres~ prior ~"21 of the conttac:ting authority will re.sult in a fiDaDcia1 ob~ on tbe c011tl3ctor aDd/or 
l1li2UtboriZll! State pt!ISODDI!i~ the ~e. 

DESCRIPTION 

Mandato!}• contract for the as-needed purchase of Sodium Chloride, Type 1 in bulk fonn for defu.-uy to \.mom loc:ations 
within Alasb. for the Department ofTnnsportation & Public Facilities. All tenns and conditions ofiTB ii2513H031 apply. 

CONTRACfTERMS: Febro;uy 19, 201.3 throu;h Febmazy 28, 2014 with four (4) one-year nmewal options. 

ORDER.C)· Individual Pmclme Order.; will be issued by the Regional Procurement Offices on an as-needed basis with no 
guaranteed maximum quantities. 1\finimum orders nill be 30 tons. 

PRICES: Prior to September 30, 2013, the price per ton for all1ocations noted in the Price List is lll!:ll 

At any time dwing the contract period, new F. 0 .B. Points may be added. The price per ton for a new destination 
shall be the same as the nearest priced delivery destination with the State reimbursing the additional freight costs. 

Orders placed after September 30. 2013 shall be at the following rate (plus freight to fiml destimtion): 

CDPP Price Delh-er 
Anchorage $271.63/ton 30 days AR.O 
Fairbanks $338.25/ton 30 days AR.O 
Valdez S328/ton 30days AR.O 
Seattle $200/ton 30 days AR.O 

INVOICES: Send m \"'Oices to the address Oil tbe ordering agency's Purchase Order. Additional shipping cos-ts for new 
de lint~· d.estinations shall b e inl·oiced as a separate line item with the actuall'l'ceipts attached. 

CONTJ.AC'JDIG AII'lHOliJYN.U!E I ;:cW'ement Specialist IY 
S!G:i.<\ TUIE 

Becl:· G.attung "·~- .,//~., 

TE:IDHm!E Ntm.lliD.: (907) 465-8949 PAGE l OF 1 
niPOltTM,.: 
1. c::...a ............... ~.~ ......... avpliU' .. 41~-~-,.... .......... 
l . n..!JIII a..._. ... r..au.::bu.u..:WC'-f'WJ:Z..IHc-. ~Ne...,.._..oiOIW . ...._. ... r.r .. ...aaw .. at6e ,___._ ..,....._ 

18 TKUi liTMW C)fU.IZNAI. 'TDtxltm"P.ACTCMl 
ONI'!~ruJu.AUOI~.SDVIt:n 

ONI:CXWF"ltJD.I:UVIN:J lm"AJrn.C~.sa..n.Y ~ 

Page 9 of 41



Page 10 of 41



__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: August 8, 2017, Regular Meeting Page 1 of 4 

City of Palmer, Alaska 
City Council Minutes 

Regular Meeting 
August 8, 2017 

A. CALL TO ORDER

A regular meeting of the Palmer City Council was held on August 8, 2017, at 7:00 p.m. in the council 
chambers, Palmer, Alaska. 

Mayor DeVries called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

B. ROLL CALL

Comprising a quorum of the Council, the following were present: 

Edna DeVries, Mayor Linda Combs, Deputy Mayor 
Richard Best Steve Carrington 
David Fuller Brad Hanson  
Peter LaFrance 

Also in attendance were the following: 

Nathan Wallace, City Manager Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Clerk 
Michael Gatti, City Attorney Bernadette Packa, CMC, Deputy City Clerk 

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Council Member Carrington. 

D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
1. Approval of Consent Agenda

a. Action Memorandum No. 17-057: Authorizing the City Manager to Negotiate and Execute a
Contract with K&H Civil Constructors, in the Amount, Not to Exceed, $105,415.00, to Perform Site
Work and Utility Extensions for a Future Water Pressure Booster Station Located on Bogard Road

2. Approval of Minutes of Previous Meetings
a. June 27, 2017, Regular Meeting
b. July 25, 2017, Special Meeting
c. July 25, 2017, Regular Meeting

Main Motion: To Approve Consent Agenda and Minutes 
Moved by: Combs 

Seconded by: Fuller 
Action: Motion carried unanimously by all members present 

In favor: Best, Carrington, Combs, DeVries, Fuller, Hanson, LaFrance 
Opposed: None 

E. COMMUNICATION AND APPEARANCE REQUESTS

Item 1 – Airport Advisory Commission Chair John Lee 
• Commented on the paving project underway at the airport;
• Spoke to the Federal Aviation Administration Pancake Breakfast and Summer Solstice Boogie;

Page 11 of 41



__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: August 8, 2017, Regular Meeting Page 2 of 4 

• Commented on outcome of the fuel flowage fee and addressed lease activity;
• Highlighted accomplishments of the commission to include additions to the City website airport pages;
• Noted the direction in which the commission wanted to move; and
• Fielded questions from the Council.

Deputy Mayor Combs thanked Chair Lee for his years of service and the hard work accomplished by the 
entire Airport Advisory Commission. Mayor DeVries expressed appreciation to the commission for their 
service. 

F. REPORTS

Item 1 – City Manager’s Report 

City Manager Nathan Wallace: 
• Provided an overview of the project report;
• Provided an update on the proposed Mat-Su Borough Sales Tax;
• Addressed a proposed plastic bag tax by the Mat-Su Borough;
• Noted the Mat-Su Miners won the 2017 Alaska Baseball League Championship;
• Noted the city was on the list to receive a Homeland Security Grant;
• Highlighted work on the Palmer–Wasilla Eastern Terminus;
• Commented on receipt of a new offer from Granite Construction;
• Noted his evaluation was scheduled for the August 22, meeting; and
• Fielded questions from the Council.

City Attorney Gatti spoke to the provision for municipalities to dedicate funds received through sales tax. He 
also noted the differences between a sales tax and an excise tax. 

Item 2 – City Clerk’s Report 

City Clerk Norma Alley highlighted her written report. 

Item 3 – Mayor’s Report 

Mayor DeVries:  
• Highlighted her written report;
• Addressed a letter received from the Mat-Su Tennis Association concerning resurfacing of the Bill

Hermann Tennis Courts;
• Addressed a work party scheduled for Friday to clean-up graffiti at the Amoosment Park;
• Noted additional upcoming events; and
• Commented on the public’s reception of the Beautification Awards for Palmer Pride.

G. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION

Eugene Carl Haberman: 
• Addressed Information Memorandum No. 17-016 concerning proposed meeting time change for the

boards and commissions;
• Spoke against the potential changes to sections on recording proceedings and noticing; and
• Spoke against use of substitute resolutions.

Mike Chmielewski: 
• Spoke to excise taxes and noted positive points regarding them.

Page 12 of 41



__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: August 8, 2017, Regular Meeting Page 3 of 4 

Reese Everett: 
• Provided Mat-Su Borough School District updates; and
• Expressed excitement regarding the start of the new school year.

H. NEW BUSINESS

Item 1 – Committee of the Whole (note: action may be taken by the council following the committee of 
the whole) 

a. Discuss 2018 Budget Priorities
b. Discuss IM No. 17-016: Potential Palmer Municipal Code Amendments Regarding Boards and

Commissions

Main Motion: To Enter Into a Committee of the Whole to Discuss the 2018 Budget 
Priorities and IM No. 17-016: Potential Palmer Municipal Code 
Amendments Regarding Boards and Commissions  

Moved by: Hanson 
Seconded by: Combs 

Action: Motion carried unanimously by all members present 
In favor: Best, Carrington, Combs, DeVries, Fuller, Hanson, LaFrance 

Opposed: None 

The Council took a brief recess from 8:07 to 8:21 p.m. 

a. Discussion on 2018 Budget Priorities

City Manager Wallace provided a handout which graphically displayed budgeted amounts and actual 
expenditures from the last four years. He also spoke to items from the capital projects list he handed out. 

City Clerk Alley presented and addressed three major budget items, including an electronic records 
management system, election equipment, and the addition of a half-time administrative assistant. 

b. Discussion on IM No. 17-016: Potential Palmer Municipal Code Amendments Regarding
Boards and Commissions

City Clerk Alley presented and clarified the proposed changes while fielding questions from the Council. 
Items of discussion included: 

• Meeting time change;
• Excused absences;
• Change of term to start January 1 and end December 31;
• Appointment of an ex officio student member from an area high school;
• Resident requirement for the Board of Economic Development;
• Noticing in the Frontiersman; and
• Recording of meetings.

The Council entered into a Committee of the Whole at 8:06 p.m. and exited at 10:00 p.m. 

I. RECORD OF ITEMS PLACED ON THE TABLE

Mat-Su Tennis Association Funding Request letter handed out during the Mayor’s Report 
Map of Palmer–Wasilla Highway Eastern Terminus Project handed out by City Manager Wallace 
Graphs and Spreadsheets regarding 2018 Budget handed out by City Manager Wallace 
Table of Items for 2018 Budget handed out by City Clerk Alley 

Page 13 of 41



__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: August 8, 2017, Regular Meeting Page 4 of 4 

J. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION

Eugene Carl Haberman: 
• Addressed the Mat-Su Borough’s proposed sales tax and responses from local governments.

K. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS

Deputy Mayor Combs: 
• Reminded everyone of the first at home football game for Palmer High School scheduled for Friday

night;
• Commented on the success of the Palmer Pride Picnic;
• Commented on the outstanding video on the City’s Facebook page showing work being done at the

airport; and
• Mentioned the Mat-Su Regional Medical Center would be applying for a Certificate of Need to add

beds specifically for behavioral health assessments.

Council Member Fuller: 
• Noted he would be out of state for the next meeting, and he hoped to participate telephonically.

Council Member Hanson: 
• Extended his support to Deputy Mayor Combs; and
• Suggested the City look at the installation of security cameras to stave off the occurrence of graffiti.

Council Member Best: 
• Concurred with Council Member Hanson concerning security cameras; and
• Spoke in support of the use of cameras as well, but addressed concern regarding retention of the

images.

Council Member LaFrance: 
• Reminded everyone of the Hatcher Pass Epic scheduled for this weekend;
• Expressed his heartfelt condolences to Deputy Mayor Combs;
• Commented on the wonderful experience of his first flight from the Palmer Airport.

 Council Member Carrington: 
• Offered his condolences and prayers to Deputy Mayor Combs; and
• Thanked Radio Free Palmer for partnering with the Council to broadcast the meetings.

Mayor DeVries: 
• Noted this week’s cancellation of the meeting of the Mayor’s, Manager’s, and Mat-Su School District.

L. ADJOURNMENT

With no further business before the Council, the meeting adjourned at 10:15 p.m. 

Approved this 22nd day of August, 2017. 

_____________________________ 
Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Clerk 

_____________________________ 
Edna B. DeVries, Mayor  

Page 14 of 41



PROCLAMATION 

A PROCLAMATION HONORING SANDRA GARLEY IN RETIREMENT 

WHEREAS, Sandra faithfully and professionally served as the City of Palmer Director of Community 
Development for more than 9 years and served over 38 years in municipal government in Alaska and New 
Mexico; and 

WHEREAS, displaying her leadership, management and planning expertise, Sandra was the driver behind the 
Board of Economic Development; the Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources Advisory Board; and the 
Planning and Zoning Commission which have positioned the city for a stable and prosperous future; and 

WHEREAS, this was repeatedly demonstrated by her genuine care for Palmer’s citizens and employees and 
always helping to make the City of Palmer – “Alaska at its Best”; and  

WHEREAS, during Sandra’s years of service she represented the City well in serving the Mayor, Council, 
City Manager, and the many City employees while displaying remarkable patience and professionalism 
performing these duties; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Palmer recognizes the invaluable resource it has enjoyed in the longevity of Sandra’s 
gracious service and desires to acknowledge the unanimous appreciation of the City Council, administration 
and her coworkers; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS PROCLAIMED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Palmer, Alaska, 
do herby express our gratitude and appreciation for all the work Sandra did while serving the City as Director 
of Community Development for the City of Palmer and although she will no longer be a city employee, we 
are certain she will continue to serve our community with enthusiasm well into the future as she has always 
done. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and cause the seal of the City of Palmer to be affixed 
on this 22nd day of August, 2017.      

________________________________ 
Edna B. DeVries, Mayor 

________________________________ 
Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Clerk 

Page 15 of 41



Page 16 of 41



Report to Council
City Manager Nathan Wallace
August 22, 2017

Staff Update and analysis (July 2017): 

Police Department: 

Total calls:  808 down from 841 in June 

Call breakdown - 37%(June - 32%) traffic/vehicle related, 22% (June - 22%) checks (welfare/property), 13%(June - 

15%) citizen assistance, 29%(June - 30%) other.  

Fire Department: Calls: 49(50 -June) in July 2017, down by 2.1% from last month, up by 44% from last year. 
Fire: 6(7 -June), Rescue: 15(15 - June), Hazard: 2(2 -June), Good intents: 12(13 -June), False alarm:  6(7 –June),

Special Incident: 0(0 -June), Service call: 7(6 - June), Overpressure/explosion/overheat: 1(0 – June). 

Page 17 of 41



Report to Council 
City Manager Nathan Wallace 
August 22, 2017 

Community Development: 

Library:    

Patrons:  June  July 

Total Registered Patrons  13,133 13,179 

Total Mat-Su Borough Resident Patrons  10,132 10,163 
Total City of Palmer Resident Patrons   3,001   3,016 
New Library Users  77   46 

Usage:     June   July 
Patron Visits/Count  10,617   10,196 
Reference Questions   2,093   2,260 
Library Computer Sessions  2,872   2,517 
WIFI Sessions    1,611   1,553 
Circulation (PPL items)       11,044   10,804 
Magazine circulation   150      696 
Take Home Paperbacks        307      163 

Programs: 

Children’s Programs   21  Events   1,219   Participants    15   Events   1,113   Participants 
Class Visits  5  Events        76   Participants   6   Events       85    Participants 
Young Adult Programs  7 Events       337   Participants   6   Events      636    Participants 
Adult Programs     5  Events        75   Participants   4   Events      376    Participants 
Total Library Programs  38  Events      1,707  Participants      31  Events  2,210   Participants 

Community Events  33  Events  307   Participants      31  Events   211   Participants 
Total Events   71  Events    2,014   Participants      62  Events  2,421   Participants 

Building and Compliance: 

Compliance Letters dispatched:  2(9- June) (unsightly premise), 1(4- June) (clean up follow up), 

and 16 (5 - June) (permit follow ups), other: 9(5 - June) 

Page 18 of 41



Report to Council 
City Manager Nathan Wallace 
August 22, 2017 

Page 19 of 41



Report to Council 
City Manager Nathan Wallace 
August 22, 2017 

     PALMER GOLF COURSE 

 June July 

Page 20 of 41



 
 
 
 
 
 
TO: Palmer City Council 
FROM: Norma I. Alley, MMC   
SUBJECT: City Clerk’s Report for the August 22, 2017, Council Meeting 
 
 

1. Elections – Election Day is October 3rd  
 
At the August 8 Council Meeting, a couple questions came up regarding the impacts of 
the Borough not having a ballot at the Palmer precincts.  Those questions are addressed 
below: 

• Will Borough ballots from other precincts be made available at the Palmer 
precincts? – There will be Absentee Voting available at the Borough building 
only. 

• Will the DOE be open on September 2 and September 3 to assist with voter 
registrations? – No, they are not open on the weekends.  They remain open on 
the weekend of the State’s voter registration deadline, but they do not for the 
local election. 

 
Important Election Dates: 

• Declaration of Write-In Candidacy: July 31 - Sept. 28 
• Last Day to Register to Vote: Sept. 3 (Update registration online at 

http://www.elections.alaska.gov/) 
• Early Voting: September 18 - October 2 

o MSB: M-F, 8:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m. 
o DOE:  

 September 19 – October 1 
• M-F, 9:00 a.m. – 7:00 p.m. 
• Sat., 10:00 a.m. – 3:00 p.m. 

 October 3:  
• 9:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m. 

• Last Day to Request an Absentee Ballot: September 26 
• Canvass Board: October 6, 2:00 p.m. at City Hall 
• Certification of Election: October 9, 6:00 p.m. at City Hall 

 
2. AML Annual Conference 

 
I have received information for the AML Annual Conference to be held November 15-
17.  When you have a chance to review the attached material, please let me know if you 
wish to attend so room reservations can be made. 
 

  

Norma I. Alley, MMC 
City Clerk 

 
  
  

Phone: (907) 745-3271 
Direct: (907) 761-1321 

Fax: (907) 745-0930 
  

231 W. Evergreen Ave. 
Palmer, Alaska 99645-6952 

www.cityofpalmer.org  

  
  

Page 21 of 41

http://www.elections.alaska.gov/


3. Upcoming Meetings 
 
The tentative meetings schedule is attached. 
 

Tentative Future Meeting Schedule 
Meeting 

Date 
Meeting 

Type Time Notes 

Sept 12 Regular 7 pm  

Sept 26 Regular 7 pm  

Oct 9 Special 6 pm Election Certification 

Oct 10 Regular 7 pm  

Oct 17 Special 6 pm 2018 Budget 

Oct 24 Special 6 pm 2018 Budget 

Oct 24 Regular 7 pm  

Nov 7 Special 6 pm 2018 Budget 

Nov 14 Special 6 pm 2018 Budget 

Nov 14 Regular 7 pm  

Nov 21 Special 6 pm 2018 Budget 

Nov 28 Special 6 pm 2018 Budget 

Nov 28 Regular 7 pm  

Dec 5 Special 6 pm 2018 Budget 

Dec 12 Special 6 pm 2018 Budget 

Dec 12 Regular 7 pm Budget Adoption 

Dec 26 Regular 7 pm  

Jan 9, ‘18 Regular 7 pm  

 
 

Page 22 of 41



Page 23 of 41



Page 24 of 41



Page 25 of 41



Page 26 of 41



Page 27 of 41



Page 28 of 41



Page 29 of 41



Page 30 of 41



Page 31 of 41



Page 32 of 41



Page 33 of 41



Page 34 of 41



Page 35 of 41



Page 36 of 41



Mayor’s Memo 
Council Meeting report – August 22, 2017     

 

 

 

UP COMING EVENTS 

 

Outreach to High school age student(s) for Boards and   Commission 

            Mayor’s Minute on Radio – Sept 22 

           Mayors/Managers Meeting – Wasilla August 24 – 4 pm and September 21 - Palmer 

            

Manager, Mayor, Clerk & Attorney agenda – August 31 and Sept 14 and 28 

Job Corps graduation – August 25 – 2 pm  

Alaska State Fair – August 24/parade August 26 

Valley Oaks – Women’s facility Set Free Alaska 1 to 4 pm – Bogard Road  

 

 

 

 

PENDING ITEMS –  Flag Pole by Library, Electric stands on South Alaska, tennis courts 
request, game day with the Miners  

 

 

   

Page 37 of 41



Page 38 of 41



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 17-059 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer  
Action Memorandum No. 17-059 

 
Subject:  Authorizing the City Manager to Negotiate and Execute a Contract with Bore Tide Construction, 
in an Amount Not to Exceed $133,693.33 to Perform Removal of Old Electrical Heating, Installation of 
New Mechanical Hydronic Heating Equipment and Required Flight Service Station (FSS) Finishing 
Upgrades per City of Palmer Lease Agreement with the Federal Aviation Administration 
 
Agenda of: August 22, 2017 
 
Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________ 
 ☐ Denied 
 

Originator Information: 

Originator: Chris Nall, Public Works Director 
 

Department Review: 

Route to:  Department Director: 
 

Signature:  Date: 

  Community Development    

√  Finance  

 08/04/2017 

  Fire    

  Police     

√  Public Works    08/03/2017 
 

Approved for Presentation By: 

  Signature:  Remarks: 

City Manager 
 

 

 

 

City Attorney   

City Clerk   
 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 133,693.33 
 

This legislation (√): 
 Creates revenue in the amount of: $  
X Creates expenditure in the amount of: $ 133,693.33 
 Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
 Has no fiscal impact   

 

Funds are (√): 

X Budgeted Line item(s): $30,000; 08-01-10-7167 Flight Service Heater System Replace 
 

 Not budgeted  $53,000; 30-30-10-6045 Randy Thom Flight Center Repairs 
 
 

   $75,000; 30-30-10-6225 GF to Airport CIP Paving Match 
                                               

 
 

Director of Finance Signature:  
Page 39 of 41



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 17-059 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s):  
 Bid Tabulation  

 
Summary Statement:  
 
This action is to authorize the City Manager to negotiate and execute a contract with Bore Tide 
Construction, for the removal of the old electric heating system, installation of new mechanical hydronic 
heating system and all required FSS finishing upgrades in accordance with the current City of Palmer, FSS 
lease and the FAA Palmer FSS survey. Approval of this AM will allow the City to update the heating system 
at the Randy Thom FSS, saving on heating cost, and bringing the FSS into compliance with FAA 
requirements.  
 
Original budget estimates for this project were too low for the scope of work required.  The boiler 
replacement was budgeted for $30,000, this only accounted for the boiler and not the associated piping 
and register installation. 
 
The estimates for FSS upgrades did not account for the premium for federal work requirements in a secure 
environment in the Flight Service Center. 
 
The administration is recommending making up for this shortfall in estimates by utilizing a portion of the 
remaining funds from the Airport CIP Grant Match. 
 
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
To approve Action Memorandum No. 17-059 authorizing FSS upgrades. 

Page 40 of 41



Mechanical and Finish Upgrades at FSS
Bid Opening 8/3/17

BID TABULATIONS CITY OF PALMER

Bidder 1 Bidder 2 Bidder 3 Bidder 4 Bidder 5 Bidder 6

Goertz  
Construction, Inc.

Sitnasuk 
Construction 

Services

Bore Tide 
Construction

Wolverine Supply

BID PROPOSAL Bid Amount Bid Amount Bid Amount Bid Amount Bid Amount Bid Amount

Signed Proposal (Y/N) Y Y Y Y

Acknow. Addenda 1-3 Yes Yes Yes Yes

Base Bid 155,374.00$       230,497.00$        $      127,643.33  $      137,000.00 

Add Alt 1 1,950.00$          6,180.00$           $          6,050.00  $          7,000.00 

Total Bid 157,324.00$          236,677.00$          133,693.33$          144,000.00$          

P
age 41 of 41


	Agenda
	Res. 17-026 Election Officials
	AM 17-058 Road Salt Purchase
	Supplemental Documents

	Minutes
	8-8-17 Regular Meeting 

	Proclamation Garley
	Manager Report 
	Clerk's Memo 
	Mayor's Memo
	AM 17-059 Flight Services Station Boiler and Finishings final
	Supplemental Documents




